
 

                                                                
 

Notice of meeting of  
East Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 
To: Councillors Wiseman (Chair), Douglas (Vice-Chair), 

Firth, Fitzpatrick, Funnell, Hyman, King, McIlveen, 
Warters and Watson 
 

Date: Thursday, 3 May 2012 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
Members are advised to note that there will be no Site Visits for 
this meeting. 
 
1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point in the meeting Members are asked to declare any 

personal or prejudicial interests they may have in the business on 
this agenda. 
 

2. Minutes    
 (To follow). 

 
3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Sub-Committee’s remit can do so. Anyone 
who wishes to register or requires further information is 
requested to contact the Democracy Officer on the contact 
details listed at the foot of this agenda. The deadline for 
registering is Wednesday 2 May 2012 at 5.00 pm. 
 

4. Plans List    
 To determine the following planning applications related to the 

East Area. 
 



 
a) Yearsley Bridge Adult Training Centre 

Huntington Road York YO31 9BN 
(11/03269/FULM)   

(Pages 3 - 31) 

 This full major application is for the erection of 32 dwellings, 1no 
retail unit and 1no veterinary surgery following the demolition of 
existing buildings. 
 
This application was deferred at the April meeting of the 
Committee due to concerns over highway safety, to seek 
clarification on the ownership of the land to the north east of the 
site and issues of landscaping and site drainage. [Heworth] 
 

b) 98 Eastfield Avenue Haxby York YO32 
3EZ (12/00804/FUL)   

(Pages 32 - 36) 

 This full application is for the extension of an existing bay 
window on the front elevation of the property at 98 Eastfield 
Avenue. 
 
This application is being determined by the Committee as the 
applicant has been a former employee of the Council within the 
last four years.[Haxby and Wigginton] 
 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

Democracy Officer: 
 
Name- Judith Betts 
Telephone – 01904 551078 
E-mail- judith.betts@york.gov.uk 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 
• Contact details set out above. 

 
 

 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and 
contact details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no 
later than 5.00 pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of 
business on the agenda or an issue which the committee has 
power to consider (speak to the Democracy Officer for advice 
on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy 
Officer. 

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s 
website or from Democratic Services by telephoning York 
(01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this 
meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for 
viewing online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of 
individual reports or the full agenda are available from Democratic 
Services.  Contact the Democracy Officer whose name and contact 
details are given on the agenda for the meeting. Please note a 
small charge may be made for full copies of the agenda 
requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  
The meeting will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue 
with an induction hearing loop.  We can provide the agenda or 
reports in large print, electronically (computer disk or by email), in 
Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take longer than others 
so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours for 
Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-
by or a sign language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact 
the Democracy Officer whose name and contact details are given 
on the order of business for the meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in 
another language, either by providing translated information or an 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



interpreter providing sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone 
York (01904) 551550 for this service. 

 
 
Holding the Cabinet to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Cabinet (39 out 
of 47).  Any 3 non-Cabinet councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of 
business from a published Cabinet (or Cabinet Member Decision 
Session (CMDS)) agenda. The Cabinet will still discuss the ‘called 
in’ business on the published date and will set out its views for 
consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny Management 
Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Cabinet meeting in the 
following week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will 
be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees 
appointed by the Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new 

ones, as necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the 
committees to which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and 
reports for the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 1 of 7 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 3 May  2012 Ward: Heworth 
Team: Major and 

Commercial Team 
Parish: Heworth Planning Panel 

 
Reference: 11/03269/FULM 
Application at: Yearsley Bridge Adult Training Centre Huntington Road York 

YO31 9BN  
For: Erection of 32 dwellings, 1no retail unit and 1no veterinary surgery 

following demolition of existing buildings 
By: Andy Cramer and Jeremy Binnian 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 24 February 2012 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0 OFFICER UPDATE 
 
1.1 Members will recall that this application was deferred at the April Committee.  
Members raised concerns over highway safety and asked for clarification on 
ownership of the land to the northeast side of the site, landscaping and site 
drainage.  The original committee report is attached with this update. 
 
2.0 CONSULTATIONS UPDATED 
 
Affordable housing officers 
 
2.1 Report that the amount of affordable housing is acceptable and compliant with 
the Council's brownfield target which is 25%.  It is proposed 8 of the 32 homes are 
affordable; 5 to rent, 3 for private sale.  Officers do not object to the proposed 
location of the affordable houses. 
 
Landscape officers 
 
2.2 This revised scheme does not manage to retain the existing garden setting the 
site contributes to Huntington Road, but it does allow scope for a band of vegetation 
along the road frontage, plus retention of the existing Ash trees in the north east 
corner and an area of public open space at the far end of the site.  There remains a 
loss of trees along the eastern boundary, but the mature Oak could now be safely 
retained with care. 
 
2.3 The housing scheme itself contains a fair degree of new street tree planting 
although, these would not tend to thrive as well as the existing trees, nor be of a 
large stature since they will be in a more restricted growing environment.  
Nonetheless the replacement of the existing car park with open space not only 

Agenda Item 4aPage 3



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 2 of 7 

makes a valuable addition to the existing public open space; it also provides an 
opportunity for permanent substantial tree planting.  
 
2.4 With regards the landscape proposals, officers make the following points, which 
could be addressed through a condition. 
 
• The fundamental elements within the new public open space (POS) are 

acceptable.  Some additional scrub planting in the form of single, specimen, 
native shrubs such as Hawthorn and Rosa should be included. The wildflower 
areas should be more extensive. Removing the car park will provide a good basis 
for establishing wild flowers. Whilst an immediate kick about area should be 
included there is ample space within the existing adjacent POS for this. There is 
the potential to add more trees. The proposed tree species are acceptable and a 
mixed native flowering hedge along the boundary with the houses rather than just 
privet and laurel is expected.  

 
• The beds between the parking bays, and within the forecourts, should be planted 

up rather than grassed.  
 
• A similar native hedge should be planted alongside the street rather than around 

the retail car park, with a small margin for bulbs at the front and to allow for the 
season’s growth adjacent to the footpath.  

 
2.5 In summary: Unfortunately the loss of trees can not be entirely compensated for 
given the extent of development, however the additional public open space would be 
a valuable asset, which could also support large tree species with direct public 
visibility in a sustainable environment and officers consider therefore scheme is 
acceptable. 
 
Countryside Officers 
 
2.6 A bat survey of the buildings and emergence survey has been carried out.  The 
Emergence Survey recorded a single noctule, which commuted from the southern 
boundary of the site in a north westerly direction and a single common pipistrelle 
was recorded foraging along the northern boundary of the site. No other bat activity 
was recorded during the survey. 
 
2.7 No bats were seen to emerge from the buildings on the application site and 
there is no evidence of current or historic roosting.  The report recommends that as 
nesting birds have been recorded in the lodge demolition should only proceed once 
the absence of nesting can be confirmed. 
 

Page 4



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 3 of 7 

2.8 Officers recommend a condition to protect bats (which may take up residence in 
future) during demolition and to provide bat roost features within the new 
development. 
 
Highway Network Management 
 
2.9 The applicant has removed visitor parking and the build-out along the main 
access road to maintain a continuous 5.8m width access road.   
 
2.10 The parking spaces to plot 18 (garage and driveway) which are close to the 
ambulance station access have been retained.  Swept paths show vehicles 
reversing out of the space, and ambulances leaving the hub.  This arrangement 
could still cause conflict (ambulances are likely to leave from the centre of the 
access, rather than straddle the left hand side of the road as shown on the 
applicant’s swept paths).  However, considering the frequency that vehicles will be 
reversing out of plot 18 and ambulances leaving the hub simultaneously, this 
arrangement would not warrant further amendment or refusal of the application.    
  
Property Services 
 
2.11 Officers have confirmed that the strip of land between plots 9 and 26 and 55/57 
Kirkham Avenue is council owned.  Property Services have discussed with the 
applicants the option of including the land in the sale to them but need to check 
confirm it is not needed by Housing.  If not then it can be included in the sale. 
   
Environment Agency 
 
2.12 The EA raised no objections but asked to be consulted further if Yorkshire 
Water do not allow the foul water to be connected to the main sewer.  (N.B. - 
Yorkshire Water have confirmed that foul water could be connected to the main 
sewer)  
 
Planning Panel 
 
2.13 No response to date. 
 
3.0 APPRAISAL 
 
3.1 Key issues 
 

• Design and the amenity of future and surrounding occupants 
• Highway network management 

 
 
 

Page 5



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 4 of 7 

DESIGN AND THE AMENITY OF FUTURE AND SURROUNDING OCCUPANTS 
 
3.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) advises that to boost 
significantly the supply of housing Local Planning Authority’s (LPA) should have an 
evidence base to ensure that housing need is delivered and identify sites to meet 
demand. 
 
3.3 The NPPF advises that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, 
is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places 
better for people.  This means development which:-  
 
• will function well and add to the overall quality of the area 
• establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to create 

attractive and comfortable places  
• respond to local character and history, and reflect the identity of local 

surroundings and materials, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation;  

• create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder, and the fear 
of crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion; and are visually 
attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping. 

 
3.4 Local Plan policy NE1 requires that when trees are to be removed, appropriate 
replacement planting should be proposed to mitigate any loss. 
 
3.5 The Poplar trees would not be compatible with the housing proposed on the site 
and therefore removal of around two thirds of the trees are proposed, otherwise the 
site could not be viably developed. Although vegetation would be lost from the site, 
an area of public open space, which will replace an area of hard-standing, would 
introduce a variety of species, including substantial trees.  This space would not only 
provide amenity space for future residents but could be accessed by, and would 
improve the setting of, the existing homes to the southeast and southwest, providing 
an attractive vista for homes which face the application site. 
 
3.6 The landscaping proposed throughout the development in general (in particular 
the Oak which will be retained that would form a focal point at the end of the first 
residential street within the site) would create an attractive environment, as required 
by the NPPF.   
 
3.7 The loss of the house and garden in exchange for a retail unit and car park 
would be a consequence of the development, however this stretch of Huntington 
Road is generally intensely developed and the proposed buildings maintain the 
building line of the houses to the northern side of the retail unit and the building to 
the immediate south of the vets and a considerable amount of planting is proposed 
to green the setting.   

Page 6



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 5 of 7 

 
3.8 Whilst ideally the development would be set back further from the main road and 
the Poplars would all be retained, the loss of this landscaping needs to be balanced 
against the benefits development of the density proposed would deliver; i.e. much 
needed family housing and affordable housing.  There would also be a significant 
enhancement of the open space at the south end of the site.  Given these gains, 
and as there is a reasonable amount planting proposed throughout the 
development, the scheme is deemed to reasonably comply with the thrust of the 
NPPF which seeks to deliver housing which is attractive and in accordance with 
established need. 
 
HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGEMENT 
 
Servicing  
3.9 Plans have been provided that demonstrate the commercial and residential 
aspects of the site can be adequately serviced.  Waste collection from the veterinary 
store would occur from the access road and highways officers do not object to this 
proposal.  Other deliveries/collection vehicles will be of a size that will allow them to 
use the designated parking within the car park. 
 
Road layout 
3.10 The applicants have removed visitor parking and the build-out along the main 
access road to maintain a continuous 5.8m width access road.  National guidance 
(manual for streets) advises 5.5m width is adequate for two-way traffic.  The tree 
and visitor parking by the ambulance station has been omitted, replaced by a 
footpath, so there is a pedestrian route to the ambulance station and visibility for 
ambulance drivers leaving the ‘hub’ will not be impaired.   
 
3.11 The parking to plot 18 on the opposite side of the road to the Ambulance Hub 
access has been retained.  Advice from Highway Network Management officers is 
that this arrangement would not lead to undue harm to highway safety, and officers 
do not consider they could defend an appeal if permission were refused due to this 
arrangement.  The frequency that vehicles from plot 18 and the hub would be 
accessing the highway simultaneously would be limited.  In addition both parties 
would be aware of this arrangement and would act with due caution.  
 
3.12 There are 2 visitor parking spaces within the revised layout.  National policy 
and the local plan seek to reduce private car use, through delivering housing in 
locations where the need to travel by private car is minimised.  The application site 
is within walking distance of facilities offering everyday goods and the nearest 
primary school on Haxby Road.  Huntington Road is on a bus route to the city 
centre, and therefore there are alternatives to private car use.  Parking standards in 
the local plan are the maximum and they require no more than 1 car parking space 
for 2-bed houses and no more than 2 per 3 or more bedroom sized house.  11 of the 
13 houses that have more than 2 bedrooms have 2 parking spaces and overall the 

Page 7



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 6 of 7 

level of car parking is deemed to be acceptable.  To accommodate more spaces 
would be at the expense of landscaping which, given the density of the scheme, is 
considered to be imperative to delivering an environment which is visually 
acceptable and not dominated by hard-standing and cars. 
  
4.0 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Some amendments to the landscaping scheme are required; however these 
can, and typically are, agreed through condition which advises on the specific 
species which are planted within the site.  Otherwise officers maintain that the 
scheme is acceptable in terms of design and highway safety.  Changes to the 
conditions originally proposed are set out in section 6.  
 
4.2 The associated legal agreement will secure: 
 

•  The affordable housing 
•  Council management of the open space 
•  Open space contribution 
•  Relocation of the bus stop on Huntington road 
•  Required traffic regulation orders 
•  Travel pass/money towards a cycle for future occupants 

 
 
5.0 RECOMMENDATION:   Approve Subject to S106 Agreement 
 
5.1 Alterations to conditions originally suggested:-  
 
 2  approved plans – site plan1286/06/01 revised – revision Q - and plans list to 
be updated accordingly  
 
14  The hours of delivery to and dispatch from each commercial premises shall be 
confined to the following times, unless otherwise approved in writing by the local 
planning authority:  
 
 Monday - Friday           07:00 - 18:00 (altered from 8am) 

Saturday, Sunday & Bank Holidays 09:00 - 18:00 
 
REASON: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents 
 
8 Detailed landscaping scheme: to add informative covering suggested 
improvements - 
 
• In the public open space there should be additional scrub planting in the form of 

single, specimen, native shrubs such as Hawthorn and Rosa should be included,  

Page 8



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 4a 
Page 7 of 7 

the wildflower areas should be more extensive and there should be more trees.  
• The hedge around the houses at the south end of the site should be a mixed 

native flowering hedge rather than just privet and laurel. 
• The entire beds between the parking bays, and within the forecourts, should be 

planted up rather than grassed.  
 
• A similar native hedge should be planted alongside the street rather than around 

the retail car park, with a small margin for bulbs at the front and to allow for the 
season’s growth adjacent to the footpath.  

 
Additional condition covering bat mitigation 
 
No development shall take place until full details of what measures for bat mitigation 
and conservation are proposed and have been submitted to and approved by the 
Council. 
 
The measures shall include: 
a) A plan of how demolition work is to be carried out to accommodate the possibility 

of bats being present.  
b) Details of what provision is to be made within the new buildings to replace the 

features lost through the demolition of the original structures. Features suitable 
for incorporation for bats include the use of special tiles, bricks, soffit boards, bat 
boxes and bat lofts and should at least replace or substitute for what exists.   

c) The timing of all operations. 
The works shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and timing 
unless otherwise approved in writing by the Council. 
 
Reason: To take account of and enhance habitat for a protected species in 
accordance with Local Plan policies NE1, NE6 and NE7. 
 
Contact Details: 
Author: Jonathan Kenyon Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551323 
 
 

Page 9



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 1 of 21 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 12 April 2012 Ward: Heworth 
Team: Major and 

Commercial Team 
Parish: Heworth Planning Panel 

 
Reference: 11/03269/FULM 
Application at: Yearsley Bridge Adult Training Centre Huntington Road York 

YO31 9BN  
For: Erection of 32 dwellings, 1no retail unit and 1no veterinary surgery 

following demolition of existing buildings 
By: Andy Cramer and Jeremy Binnian 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 24 February 2012 
Recommendation: Approve 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
Application site 
 
1.1 The application site is almost rectangular and gradually slopes downward to the 
south. On site there is a 2-storey building facing Huntington Road, which is of 
domestic appearance, setback around 10m from the street and has a garden 
setting.  Behind are a group of single storey buildings and an area of hardstanding 
which previously served as car parking.  At the south end of the site are a grassed 
area and a further car parking area.  There are a row of tall Poplar Trees along the 
eastern boundary.  There is an access road within the site which is used by the 
newly constructed ambulance station to the west of the site.  Along Huntington Road 
there are 2-storey houses to each side of the application site.  Kirkham Avenue, a 
residential cul-de-sac backs on to the site to the east.  There is a playground, 
beyond the Poplar trees to the southwest, beyond a grassed area to the south of the 
site are residential blocks, 3-storey in height.  This grassed area is within flood zone 
3.    
  
Proposals 
 
1.2 Planning permission is sought for a mixed use development.  There would be 
two single storey buildings at the Huntington Road end of the site; a retail unit and a 
veterinary unit, each with their own car parking and servicing areas.  Behind would 
be 32 houses.  The houses would be 2-storey in height: 15 x 2-bed, 15 x 3-bed and 
2 x 4-bed.  Of the 32 houses, 8 would be affordable units: 4 of these would be 3-
bed, 3 x 2-bed.  The land at the south end of the site would become public open 
space, which would be handed over to the council.  There is a proposed legal 
agreement submitted with the application which includes delivery of the affordable 
units, contributions of £17,091 towards sports pitches and £4,648 to manage the 

Page 10



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 2 of 21 

amenity open space, a contribution towards bus stop improvements, and provision 
of travel passes for future occupants. 
 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Floodzones GMS Flood Zones 2 & 3  
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYH2A Affordable Housing 
CYGP1 Design 
CYNE1 Trees, woodlands, hedgerows 
CYH4A Housing Windfalls 
CYSP7 The sequential approach to development 
CYT4  Cycle parking standards 
  
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
Housing Development (Communities and Neighbourhoods)  
 
3.1 Report that the amount of affordable housing is acceptable and compliant with 
council's brownfield target which is 25%.  It is proposed 8 of the 32 homes are 
affordable, 5 to be rented, 3 for private sale.  It was asked that these units be 
'pepper potted' around the site (no more than 2 next to each other) and the 
affordable housing plan proposed is agreed to. 
 
Design, conservation and Sustainable Development 
 
Landscape officers 
 
3.2 The site is a landmark along Huntington Road because it provides a pleasant 
degree of openness and greenery, in particular the northern stretch which maintains 
a garden character to the side of the existing detached lodge house.  This element 
of the site should be incorporated into any proposals.  
 
3.3 Officers consider the boundary with Huntington Road needs to be green using 
hedging and large-species trees, with a substantial degree of openness about it.  
The Ash tree and hedges toward the front of the site should be retained (T9, H6 and 
H11). The existing trees at the access, a Cherry and a Lime have unfortunately 
been placed under a great deal of stress due to past road/car park construction and 
more recently utilities to the new ambulance station. Due to the poor condition of the 

Page 11



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 3 of 21 

trees these could be removed, but they should be replaced (two for one) with large-
species trees and greenery which would provide an attractive green frontage to 
Huntington Road to echo that further north along the boundary.    
 
3.4 There are a limited number of good specimen trees on site, the best being the 
Ash, Oak and Poplars. Although much of the remaining planting is of lower 
individual quality per se, greater consideration must be given to the value that the 
overall vegetation brings to the street scene and the development site.   
 
3.5 Officers ask for trees and vegetation to be provided along the main access road 
within the site.  The following trees should also be retained and suitably 
accommodated: T1 Oak: which has the potential to provide a focal point at the end 
of the cul-de-sac.  The Cotoneaster T15 and Hawthorn T18 (behind the proposed 
vets) should be retained if at all possible.  
 
3.6 A long line of tightly spaced Lombardy Poplars stand just within the northeast 
boundary. These form a very distinctive and attractive landscape feature due to their 
height and uniformity and are visible from the surrounding streets.  Unfortunately the 
Poplars are not very compatible with housing development on this site. They pose a 
considerable restriction to the developable area due to the root protection area. Also 
because of their height and nature they would pose safety concerns, perceived or 
otherwise, for future residents. There may also be concerns about subsidence. The 
Poplars are currently in reasonable condition, but they can be problematic as they 
enter old age when they start to ‘break out’. They lose their aesthetic appeal if they 
have to be reduced. Ideally all the Poplars would be retained because they are such 
a strong feature but this would only be suitable if the spaces either side were to 
remain as open areas or car park. If the removal of at least two thirds of these trees 
is accepted then there has to be on site mitigation for aesthetic, environmental and 
bio-diversity reasons.  
 
Countryside officer 
 
3.7 Bats are very mobile and often change their roost sites frequently, bat surveys 
are only valid for a limited time, after which time re-survey may be necessary to 
confirm the status or level of interest of the building has not changed.  Officers 
recommend more updated, survey work should be carried out at this site (the last 
survey was carried out in 2008) in order to establish whether there is any evidence 
of recent use and to determine the current use of the site by bats.   
 
3.8 Bat surveys carried out on site in 2007 involved a full scoping and bat potential 
survey. The buildings were assessed as having medium-high potential for bats due 
to the presence of features with potential to provide roosting opportunities, such as 
gaps under loose tiles and behind soffits and fascias. Because of the presence of 
suitable habitat, surveys were then commissioned for the following activity season 
and carried out during May 2008. No roosts or roosting behaviour was identified 

Page 12



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 4 of 21 

during this time but foraging activity was recorded around the trees within the south 
eastern corner of the site. 
 
3.9 Parts of the Training Centre have since become overgrown with ivy, and this can 
provide suitable roosting habitat or conceal further habitat features. This also 
provides good nesting habitat for birds. The buildings do still have potential for 
supporting roosting bats and there is still good quality foraging habitat within the site 
itself (the garden areas have become very overgrown in recent years) and also 
within the immediate surrounding area, particularly with the River Foss just to the 
west of the site. 
 
Environmental Protection Unit 
 
Commercial premises 
3.10 There is potential noise disturbance from deliveries, customer vehicle 
movements and external plant/equipment.  Officers ask that to ensure the impact is 
acceptable deliveries are only between 08:00 and 18:00 and details are 
plant/equipment are provided for approval. 
 
Residential 
3.11 Officers recommend conditions which ensure that noise levels within houses 
and gardens meet national and council standards.  A noise assessment carried out 
for the site found that it falls within Noise Exposure Category C during the night time. 
Noise was primarily from the main road, there was also noise associated with the 
Ambulance Station. In such circumstances national policy within PPG24: Planning 
and Noise advises conditions should be imposed to ensure a commensurate level of 
protection against noise. 
 
3.12 Both the World Health Organisation Guidelines on Community Noise and 
BS8233 (Sound Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings: Code of Practice) 
recommend that to avoid sleep disturbance the LA max in a residential dwelling 
should not exceed 45dB(A) for single sound events.  The maximum night time noise 
levels recorded during the survey were regularly above 73dB.  Despite the glazing 
specification proposed by the applicants (which would reduce noise levels by 28dB) 
future residents would likely suffer disturbance.  Officers recommend that glazing 
with a specification of 35dB is installed where necessary, which would limit the 
occasions to no more than 3 per night.    
 
3.13 The Council’s general view of provision of amenity spaces/communal 
areas/gardens is that the continuous noise level should not exceed 50dB(A) when 
measured over a 16 hour period.  The acoustic report recommends that an acoustic 
barrier be constructed between the dominant noise source and proposed amenity 
areas (facing Huntington Road and the York Ambulance Station access road). The 
report recommends that the barrier be a 1.5m high, 19mm thick close boarded 
fence. It is predicted that such a barrier could provide attenuation of up to 10dB. 

Page 13



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 5 of 21 

Thus, resultant external (continuous) noise level at amenity areas fronting the roads 
will be no more than 55 dB (A). 
 
Construction 
3.14 A Construction Environmental Management Plan is requested, to manage the 
impact of noise, vibration, dust and waste disposal prior to and during construction.  
A condition is also suggested that requires piling to use a method that would lead to 
the least disturbance.    
 
Contamination 
3.15 Officers have suggested conditions to deal with contamination.  The site was 
previously used as a hospital and laundry and is located adjacent to a closed landfill 
site. Council records also show that the southern end of the site contains an infilled 
pond/ditch.  The Environmental Appraisal submitted with the application includes the 
results of some preliminary soil sampling, which reveal a contamination hotspot in 
the vicinity of trial pit TP03. Officers required additional soil sampling in the vicinity of 
TP03 and in the areas which were not previously sampled. Gas monitoring is also 
required due to the adjacent closed landfill site and the onsite infilled pond/ditch.  If 
significant contamination is detected, then cleanup work (remediation) will be 
required to ensure that the site is suitable for its proposed use.   
 
Low Emission Strategy 
3.16 In line with the Council's emerging Low Emission Strategy (framework 
approved June 2011), development proposals should demonstrate how they are 
meeting ‘best endeavours’ for reducing emissions during both construction and 
operational phases.  Any developer should strive to obtain as much modal shift 
away from private cars as possible, and aim to promote the uptake of low emission 
vehicles on site via provision of necessary infrastructure such as electric vehicle 
recharging facilities.   
 
Highway Network Management 
 
3.17 Officers have commented as follows: 
 
• Details have been requested which demonstrate that the servicing to the 

commercial premises can operate adequately, in particular waste collection for 
the veterinary unit. 

• The car parking to plot 18 is close to the ambulance station and this could lead to 
conflict. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 6 of 21 

Lifelong Learning and Culture 
 
3.18 Officers have agreed to the open space contributions proposed, towards sports 
pitches provision and management of the on-site open space.  
 
Education 
 
3.19 Officers advise that no contribution towards education facilities is required as 
there is presently space within schools in the catchment area.  It is noted that the 
scheme at the Nestlé site was approved on the basis that any required education 
contribution would be calculated prior to occupation of any dwellings onsite because 
the precise number was not known when consent was granted. 
 
Environment Agency 
 
3.20 No objections.  Comments as follows:  
 
• Some dwellings at the southern end of the site are located in Flood Zone 2.  

Flood Zone 2 is land that could flood under extreme conditions with a 0.1% 
annual chance of flooding.  It is recommended floor levels of the dwellings within 
Flood Zone 2 are set a minimum of 300mm above ground level.    

 
• EA ask to be consulted further if Yorkshire Water do not allow the foul water to be 

connected to the main sewer. 
 
• The controlled waters at this site are of low environmental sensitivity, therefore 

EA have no comments with regards to land contamination issues.  
 
Yorkshire Water 
 
3.21 Ask for the site to have separate systems for foul and surface water drainage; 
to be agreed by the planning authority and installed accordingly. 
 
York Natural Environment Panel 
 
3.22 Advise landscaping should be to a high standard introducing a natural element 
into a largely human environment.  There is an opportunity to de-culvert the beck 
and create a miniature floodplain to increase the flood capacity of the area, 
particularly important given the proximity to the River Foss.  The Panel would 
advocate the retention of the poplars and other trees where possible (this could be 
achieved by reducing the density of the housing which would appear to be over-
development).   
 
 

Page 15



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 7 of 21 

Planning Panel 
 
3.23 No response to date. 
 
Publicity 
 
3.24 Comments have been received on behalf of the ambulance station who will 
share the access road.  It is asked that a solid brick wall is erected rather than 
houses at plots 18 and 19, which will prevent residents being disturbed by noise and 
ambulance headlights.  It is asked that the parking spaces to plot 18 are removed to 
prevent cars reversing onto the access road.  It is also asked that the access road 
be two way continuously, and that no cars are allowed to park on the road in 
locations where they may obstruct ambulances. 
 
3.25 The applicants undertook a community involvement exercise prior to 
submission.  The applicants invited local councillors, the parish council and 
residents of houses surrounding the site to meet and sent a newsletter to 239 
homes in the vicinity of the site.  A meeting was held with the occupants of 196 
Huntington Road who asked whether some of the trees on site adjacent their house 
could be removed and whether the path between the two sites, which links 
Huntington Road to Kirkham Avenue was discussed (it is an adopted public footpath 
and will remain).  4 other responses were received.  Concerns were raised about 
privacy, car parking in the surrounding streets and additional traffic generation.  It 
was asked if yellow lines could be added to prevent this.  There was also concern 
Ambulances may be obstructed by cars parked on the access road.   
 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key issues:- 
 
• Principle of development  
• Affordable housing provision 
• Design  
• Amenity of future and surrounding occupants 
• Sustainability 
• Highway network management 
• Open space and Education provision 
• Drainage 
• Flood risk 
• Bats - protected species 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 8 of 21 

Principle of development  
 
4.2 A mixed use including retail, veterinary surgery and houses is proposed.  The 
proposed retail use is classed as a town centre use.  The National Policy 
Framework advises that Local planning authorities should apply a sequential test for 
main town centre uses that are not in an existing centre and are not in accordance 
with an up-to-date Local Plan. Such uses should be located in town centres, then in 
edge of centre locations. When considering edge of centre and out of centre 
proposals, preference should be given to accessible sites that are well connected to 
the town centre.  Applications should be refused if the sequential test is failed, or if 
developments would have a significant adverse effect on the vitality and viability of 
the town centre. 
 
4.3 The proposed retail unit would provide 446 sq m in floor space and officers 
understand it will replace the existing Spar convenience store on the opposite side 
of Huntington Road.  A sequential text exercise has not been undertaken.  However 
there is no objection to the development in principle as given its scale, it would serve 
the locality and would not have a material effect on the vitality and viability of the city 
centre or the local centres, as identified in the Local Plan. 
 
4.4 The site is brownfield/previously developed and within a built up area.  Public 
transport links run from Heslington Road into the city centre.  As such the location is 
suitable for housing considering the requirements of PPS3: Housing, which sets a 
priority for development of previously developed land within an accessible distance 
of a range of community facilities and with good access to jobs, key services and 
infrastructure.  A mix of 2, 3 and 4 bed sized houses are welcome, as these are 
dwelling types identified as being most needed in York’s latest strategic housing 
market assessment.  
 
Affordable housing provision 
 
4.5 The City of York Affordable Housing Viability Study 2010 advises that within 
urban areas, on brownfield sites where over 15 houses are proposed, the affordable 
housing target is 25%.  Local Plan policy H2a asks for these to be split 60/40 
between being for affordable rent and discounted sale. 
 
4.6 Of the houses proposed 4 x 2-bed and 4 x 3-bed would be affordable. 5 for 
social rent, 3 for discounted sale.  This offer would be secured through a legal 
agreement and is in line with Council targets. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 9 of 21 

Design  
 
4.7 The National Planning Policy Framework advises that good design is a key 
aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should 
contribute positively to making places better for people. This means development 
which:-  
 
• will function well and add to the overall quality of the area 

• establish a strong sense of place, using streetscapes and buildings to create 
attractive and comfortable places  

• respond to local character and history, and reflect the identity of local 
surroundings and materials, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation;  

• create safe and accessible environments where crime and disorder, and the fear 
of crime, do not undermine quality of life or community cohesion; and 

• is visually attractive as a result of good architecture and appropriate landscaping. 
 
4.8 Local Plan policy NE1 requires that when trees are to be removed, appropriate 
replacement planting should be proposed to mitigate any loss. 
 
4.9 The commercial premises would be adjacent Huntington Road with the 
proposed houses behind.  The commercial premises would be single storey with 
brick elevations.  Due to their shape and proximity to the road, they would not be 
typical of the traditional urban grain of development along the road.  The applicants 
are unwilling to amend the shape and position of the buildings. The buildings would 
be aligned in building line with their immediate neighbours and a combination of low 
level planting and trees would soften their visual impact and on balance the 
development would not have an undue impact on the appearance of the street.  
 
4.10 The retail store and plots 6 - 8 have been configured to allow vegetation along 
the east boundary in this area to be retained, including the Oak tree behind 50 
Kirkham Avenue and the hedgerow and Ash tree toward the front of the site.  This 
vegetation makes a positive contribution to the setting; its retention is desirable.  13 
new trees are also proposed along the site facing Huntington Road and the 
Hawthorn tree, which would be behind the proposed veterinary unit is also shown as 
being retained.  It is necessary to remove over half of the row of Poplar trees which 
align the site boundary to the east to enable the site to be viably developed.  In 
mitigation planting is proposed within the area at the south of the site which will 
become public open space, which will enhance the appearance and bio-diversity of 
this area.  Trees and hedges will also be added within the streets to be created.  A 
reasonable amount of planting, combined with the retention of existing vegetation 
will enhance the proposed setting, by screening boundary walls, fences and car 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 10 of 21 

parking.  A detailed landscaping scheme, including boundary treatment will be 
required to be approved as a condition, as this will be crucial to deliver a scheme of 
acceptable appearance. 
 
4.11 The houses are all to the east of the existing access road within the site.  Due 
to noise levels there would be blank gable ends and boundary walls facing the 
access road.  Trees and hedges will be required by the side of plots 18 and 32 to 
add interest to this route.  The houses are typically arranged as a series of terraces 
with car parking either to the front or at/in front of garages.  Where possible rear 
gardens back onto one another, which is preferred on security grounds.  Access to 
the rear gardens where required will be gated and private.  The houses in the 
surrounding area are typically 2-storey with detailing and materials which reflect the 
time at which they were constructed.  The proposed houses would be 2-storey with 
gable roofs and porches.  They would be predominantly brick with timber cladding 
used as a secondary material around/between the windows.  Roof tiles are yet to be 
agreed.  Slate tiles or red pantiles would fit with the character of the area.  Concrete 
tiles have been proposed which can appear unduly heavy and draw attention.  As 
such condition is proposed to agree material samples.   
 
4.12 The residential element of the scheme is deemed to be acceptable on design 
grounds; the layout and house types are suitable for the site and a reasonable 
amount of planting will be incorporated that will add character and increase the 
attractiveness of the development.   
 
Amenity of future and surrounding occupants 
 
4.13 The proposed houses are all 2-storey in height.  At their closest rear elevations 
are 9m from the ends of gardens and the closet distance between buildings would 
be between 57 Kirkham Avenue and plot 11 where the rear elevation of no.57 would 
be around 17m from the blank side elevation of plot 11.  The separation distances 
between the proposed houses and those to the east are not as generous as those 
between houses to the east of the site.  However they are adequate and the 
proposed houses would not be unduly over-bearing and would not unduly overlook 
neighbouring gardens. 
 
Future occupants 
 
4.14 Outlook: Separation distances between front and rear elevations are typically 
between 14 to 17 m which is acceptable.  Headlights from ambulances would not 
affect residents as gardens are screened by boundary walls and there would be no 
openings to habitable rooms facing the access road.  
 
4.15 Noise: Based on the findings of the noise report on average noise levels within 
the proposed houses would be acceptable.  However at monitoring point 2 (by the 
vehicle access point to the ambulance station) there were 3 occasions at night time 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 11 of 21 

where maximum noise levels were recorded at around 81 dB.  British Standards 
advise that internal noise levels should not exceed 45 dB max at night, adequate 
attenuation will be required to ensure this standard is met, and can be secured via a 
condition.   
 
4.16 Storage: it is intended that waste bins would be stored within the rear garden 
areas.  There would be a shed in the back garden of each dwelling.  The sheds 
would provide cycle storage space and are recognized under code for sustainable 
homes as being adequate for such.  The dimensions of shed would be secured as a 
condition of approval to ensure they are fit for purpose. 
  
Sustainability 
 
4.17 In accordance with the recommendations in the Core Strategy and 
requirements of the Interim Planning Document on Sustainable Design and 
Construction at least 10% of energy demand from the houses will be met by 
renewable resources (roof mounted solar panels) and the homes will be constructed 
to a Code for Sustainable Homes level 3 standard. 
 
Highway network management 
 
4.18 A transport study has been undertaken and the findings were that the traffic 
that would be generated as a consequence of the development would not have a 
material impact on the highway network.  Each of the houses have at least one car 
parking space and cycle storage.  All but 2 of the 3 and 4-bed sized houses would 
have 2 car parking spaces and there would be 4 visitor spaces for all the houses.  
The retail premises would have 11 car parking spaces and space for 12 cycles.  The 
vets would have space for 8 cars and 6 cycles.  There is adequate parking for the 
development and it is unlikely off street parking would compromise highway safety.  
To encourage use of public transport the developers will offer future residents a 
travel pass which would allow travel within the city for a 6-month period.     
 
4.19 An objection has been received on behalf of the ambulance station, it would 
prefer for the parking to plot 18 to be deleted and preferably the main access road 
would be continuously allow 2 way traffic.  These measures would prevent any 
conflict with ambulances leaving the depot.  As a traffic calming measure a chicane 
would be created by widening the footpath outside plot 18, this would slow down 
traffic approaching the driveway to plot 18 (where cars may be reversing out onto 
the road) and give ambulances leaving the depot priority.  This is deemed to be a 
suitable layout which would reduce vehicle speeds and improve safety.    
  
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 12 of 21 

Open space and Education provision 
 
4.20 An area of land around 60m by 25m in area at the south end of the site is 
proposed as public open space.  It is proposed the land is handed over to the 
Council to maintain and a sum of £4,648 would be provided for maintenance.  The 
railings which presently separate the open space to the south of the site will be 
removed and access will also be provided from the site into the children play space 
to the east.  A contribution of £16, 517 toward sports provision is proposed, which 
accords with the Council’s Open Space supplementary planning guidance note.  A 
contribution toward education provision is not required at this time as there is 
adequate space at schools within the catchment area to accommodate the 
additional demand this development would generate. 
 
Drainage 
 
4.21 York’s latest Strategic Flood Risk Assessment requires that surface water flows 
from all sites should, where practicable, be restricted to 70% of the existing runoff 
rate i.e. 30% reduction. This is acknowledged by the applicants and an underground 
storage tank would be provided on site to limit surface water run-off.  Final drainage 
details would be a condition of approval. 
 
Flood risk 
 
4.22 Plots 31 and 32 are within Flood Zone 2.  The rest of the houses are not in the 
flood zone.  Land to the south of the site (where the public open space is proposed) 
is within flood zones 2 and 3.  Flood zone 2 has a 0.1% chance of flooding each 
year.  York’s SFRA advises that houses are appropriate development in flood zone 
2, provided adequate mitigation is taken to prevent flood risk.  The Environment 
Agency recommend that the houses within flood zone 2 are raised at least 300mm 
from ground level.  The recommendations put forward by the EA will be secured by 
condition to ensure the houses are safe.  In addition they should be constructed with 
flood resilient measures and the applicants will be informed of such. 
 
Bats  
 
4.23 Local Plan policy NE7 relates to habitat creation and protection.  It states that 
development proposals will be required to retain important natural habitats and 
where possible include measures to enhance or supplement these.  In new 
developments, measurements to encourage the establishment of new habitats 
should be included as part of the overall scheme.   
 
4.24 Officers have requested that a fresh bat survey be carried out to see whether 
circumstances have changed since the last survey in 2008, when no bat habitats 
were found.  Only following a survey will the correct mitigation required be known.  If 
no bat habitats are found, replacement habitat facilities would be sought within the 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 13 of 21 

proposed development, however requirements will be more arduous if bats are 
found.  A bat survey is expected prior to committee, if not it is suggested that the 
decision be deferred until a survey has been implemented. 
 
 
5.0 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 An outstanding item is the required bat survey so levels of mitigation required 
(due to the demolition of the buildings on site which may accommodate bats) can be 
dealt with via a suitably worded planning condition.  Otherwise the development 
proposed is acceptable in principle and is welcomed in that it would help deliver the 
type of dwellings, and affordable housing, which is recognised as being needed in 
the city.  In addition the houses will meet the latest sustainable design and 
construction standards.  These benefits outweigh any identified harm and the 
scheme would not unduly compromise highway safety.   
 
5.2 Approval is recommended subject to findings of the requested bat survey 
 
COMMITTEE TO VISIT 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years -   
 
 2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
following plans:- 
 
Site layout - 1286/06/01 M  
Landscaping plan - Popplewells drawing 2282/3 B 
House types  
Contemporary Sutton - AS 1286 06 11 
Fulstow - 1286 06 11E & 11P 
Welton -  1286 06 08 Welton (con) 
Marston - AS 1286 06 08  
Garages - G100 _ G200 
Retail premises - 1308 001 001 A  
Veterinary unit - 1308 001 004 D   
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried 
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 3  The development shall be constructed to at least Level 3 of the BRE Code for 
Sustainable Homes (CSH). A Post Construction stage assessment shall be carried 
out and a Post Construction stage certificate shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority prior to occupation of the building. Should the development fail to 

Page 22



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 14 of 21 

achieve level 3 of the Code a report shall be submitted for the written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority demonstrating what remedial measures should be 
undertaken to achieve level 3 of the code. The approved remedial measures shall 
then be undertaken within a timescale to be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of achieving a sustainable development in accordance with 
the requirements of GP4a of the City of York Development Control Local plan and 
Paragraphs 4.1 to 4.6 of the Interim Planning Statement 'Sustainable Design and 
Construction' November 2007.  
 
 4  No less than 10% of the development's predicted energy requirements shall 
be provided from on-site renewable energy sources.  Confirmation of such shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
occupation of the dwellings hereby approved.  
 
Reason: In the interests of achieving a sustainable development in accordance with 
the requirement of GP4a of the City of York Development Control Local plan and the 
Interim Planning Statement 'Sustainable Design and Construction' November 2007. 
 
5  VISQ8  Samples of exterior materials to be approved   
 
6  Brickwork to the commercial premises 
A sample panel of the brickwork to be used on the commercial buildings shall be 
erected on the site and shall illustrate the colour, texture and bonding of brickwork 
and the mortar treatment to be used, and shall be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of building works.  This panel shall 
be retained until a minimum of 2 square metres of wall of the approved development 
has been completed in accordance with the approved sample. 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished 
appearance of these details prior to the commencement of building works in view of 
their prominent location. 
 
 7  Large scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of 
the development and the works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 
 
a)  Doors and windows to commercial units - to include section showing openings 
within their reveals. 
b)  Eaves/verge to commercial units. 
c)  Entrance canopy to retail premises. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity  
 

Page 23



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 15 of 21 

 8  Landscaping 
No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed hard and soft landscaping scheme 
which shall include all boundary treatment and gates and illustrate the number, 
species, height and position of trees and shrubs to be planted.  This scheme shall 
be implemented within a period of six months of the completion of the development.  
Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless 
alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety, 
suitability and disposition of species within the site and its overall appearance. 
 
 9  All trees shown as being retained on Popplewells drawing 2282/3 B shall be 
protected during construction works in accordance with BS 5837 2005: Trees in 
relation to construction. 
 
Before the commencement of development, including demolition, building 
operations, or the importing of materials and any excavations, a method statement 
regarding protection measures for the existing trees shown to be retained on the 
approved drawings shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This statement shall include details and locations of protective 
fencing; phasing of works; site access for demolition/construction and methodology; 
type of construction machinery/vehicles to be used (including delivery and collection 
lorries and arrangements for loading/off-loading); parking arrangements for site 
vehicles; locations for storage of materials; locations of utilities. Details of existing 
and proposed levels and finalised construction details for the retaining wall and 
paving shall also be included.  The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved statement. 
 
Reason: to ensure trees to be retained are appropriately protected in the interests of 
amenity. 
 
10  Cycle storage 
There shall be covered and secure cycle storage (at least 1 space per house) for 
each dwelling which shall be provided prior to occupation and retained at all times.  
For houses without garages cycle storage shall be provided within the rear garden 
areas.  The storage spaces shall be at least 1.8m by 0.7m.  
Reason: To ensure adequate space for such storage, and to promote sustainable 
modes of transport in accordance with policies GP4a and T4 of the City of York 
Draft Local Plan and PPG13: Transport. 
 
11  Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting 

Page 24



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 16 of 21 

that Order), development of the type described in Classes A, D, E, F; of Schedule 2 
Part 1 of that Order shall not be erected or constructed. 
 
The garages shall be retained for storage use and shall not be converted into living 
accommodation. 
 
Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenity, highway safety and the amenities of 
the adjoining residents the Local Planning Authority considers that it should exercise 
control over any future extensions or alterations which, without this condition, may 
have been carried out as "permitted development" under the above classes of the 
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995. 
 
12  Highway construction 
 
No dwelling to which this planning permission relates shall be occupied unless or 
until the areas to be used by pedestrians and vehicles have been constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans and are surfaced, sealed and positively drained 
and street lighting has been provided on site. 
 
Locations of street lights shall be approved by the Local Planning Authority and the 
development carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason:  To ensure appropriate access and egress to the properties, in the interests 
of visual amenity, highway safety and the convenience of prospective residents. 
 
13  The hours of delivery to and dispatch from each commercial premises shall be 
confined to the following times, unless otherwise approved in writing by the local 
planning authority:  
 
Monday - Friday            08:00 - 18:00 
Saturday, Sunday & Bank Holidays  09:00 - 18:00 
 
REASON: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents 
 
14  Insulation to dwellings (noise) 
Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority the building 
envelope of all residential buildings shall be constructed so as to achieve internal 
noise levels of 30 dB LAeq,1hour and 45 dB LAMax (between 23:00 - 07:00) in 
bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq1hour (07:00 - 23:00) in all other habitable rooms.  These 
noise levels are with windows shut and other means of acoustic ventilation provided.  
The detailed scheme shall be approved in writing by the local planning authority and 
fully implemented before the use hereby approved is occupied. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the amenity of future occupants. 
 

Page 25



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 17 of 21 

15  Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed at the commercial 
premises, which are audible at any residential accommodation, shall be submitted to 
the local planning authority for written approval.  These details shall include 
maximum (LAmax(f)) and average sound levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels 
and predicted noise levels at the nearest noise sensitive receivers. Details of any 
proposed noise mitigation measures, if required, should also be provided.  All such 
approved machinery, plant and equipment shall not be used on the site except in 
accordance with the prior written approval of the local planning authority.  The 
machinery, plant or equipment and any approved noise mitigation measures shall be 
fully implemented and operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be 
appropriately maintained thereafter. 
 
REASON: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents 
 
16  Construction Management Plan 
 
Before the commencement of development, a Construction Environmental 
Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The Construction Environmental Management Plan shall identify 
the steps and procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation and 
impact of noise, vibration, dust and waste disposal resulting from the site 
preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the development and manage 
Heavy Goods Vehicle access to the site. It shall include details of measures to be 
employed to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public 
highway. It shall include for the provision of a dilapidation survey of the highways 
adjoining the site. Once approved, the Construction Environmental Management 
Plan shall be adhered to at all times, unless otherwise first agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority.    
 
REASON: To safeguard the amenity of residential occupants in the surrounding 
area and in the interests of highway safety. 
 
17  All piling operations shall be carried out using the method likely to produce the 
least vibration and disturbance. Full details of the dates, times and duration of 
operations shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before any piling operations are begun and piling operations shall take 
place in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents 
 
18  Development on Land Affected by Contamination  
Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than 
that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must 
not commence on site until parts a to c of this condition have been complied with:  
 

Page 26



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 18 of 21 

a. Site Characterisation  
 
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with 
the planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess 
the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates 
on the site. The contents of the scheme shall be approved in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by 
competent persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The 
written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
The report of the findings must include:  
 
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground 
gases where appropriate);  
 
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:  
 

• human health,  
• property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 

woodland and service lines and pipes,  
• adjoining land,  
• groundwaters and surface waters,  
• ecological systems,  
• archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 

 
(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 
 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency’s 
‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’.  
 
b. Submission of Remediation Scheme  
 
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 
property and the natural and historical environment must be prepared, and approved 
in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of 
works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will 
not qualify as contaminated land under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  
 
c. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme  
 
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms 
prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out 

Page 27



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 19 of 21 

remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of 
commencement of the remediation scheme works.  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a 
verification report (referred to in PPS23 as a validation report) that demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried 
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors.  
 
19  Reporting of Unexpected Contamination  
 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment 
must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of the previous condition, 
and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, which 
is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  
 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a 
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the 
Local Planning Authority in accordance with the previous condition.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried 
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors. 
 
20  The dwellings within Flood Zone 2 shall have finished floor levels set a 
minimum of 300mm above ground level.  
 
INFORMATIVE: It is also recommended that flood resilient measures are 
considered in the construction of dwellings in flood zone 2.  Further information is 
available from the Planning Portal.  See Guidance on flood resilient design and 
construction. 
 
Reason: To protect the houses from flooding in accordance with PPG4. 
 
21  Development shall not begin until details of foul and surface water drainage 

Page 28



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 20 of 21 

works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and carried out in accordance with these approved details. 
 
Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details in 
the interests of the proper drainage of the site, and to comply with guidance 
contained within Planning Policy Statement 25 (Development and Flood Risk). 
 
INFORMATIVE: With respect to surface water drainage, the submitted details shall 
incorporate the following: 
 
• Existing and proposed ground levels and drainage routes. 
 
• Peak surface water run-off from the development shall be attenuated to 70% of 

the existing rate, in accordance with a scheme to reduce run-off to be submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority (based on 140 l/s/ha of 
connected impermeable areas).  The scheme submitted shall include storage 
volume calculations, using computer modelling, allowing for a 1:30 year storm 
with no surface flooding, along with no internal flooding of buildings or surface 
run-off from the site in a 1:100 year storm.  Proposed areas within the model shall 
also include an additional 20% allowance for climate change.  The modelling 
shall use a range of storm durations, with both summer and winter profiles, to find 
the worst-case volume required.  Details of run-off rates including calculations of 
both the existing and proposed rates shall also be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the 
development. 

 
22  Details of bat mitigation - to be finalised following the requested bat 
survey. 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal is acceptable in principle 
and, subject to the conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests 
of acknowledged importance, with particular reference to residential amenity, 
highway safety and flood risk.  As such the proposal complies with Policies SP7, 
GP1, GP4, GP7, GP9, NE1, T4, H2 and H4 of the City of York Development Control 
Local Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

Application Reference Number: 11/03269/FULM  Item No: 5a 
Page 21 of 21 

 2. LEGAL AGREEMENT 
 
Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of 
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Jonathan Kenyon Development Management Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551323 
 

Page 30



E

L

L

E

L

LE

L

L

L

L

L

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

11/03269/FULM
Yearsley Bridge Adult Training Centre

City of York Council

Planning and Sustainable Development

23 April 2012

1:1250

Page 31



 

Application Reference Number: 12/00804/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 1 of 4 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Date: 3 May 2012 Ward: Haxby and Wigginton 
Team: Householder and 

Small Scale Team 
Parish: Haxby Town Council 

 
Reference: 12/00804/FUL 
Application at: 98 Eastfield Avenue Haxby York YO32 3EZ  
For: Bay window to front 
By: Mr Graham Tissiman 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 18 April 2012 
Recommendation: Householder Approval 
 
1.0 PROPOSAL 
 
THE PROPOSAL:  
 
1.1 Planning permission is sought to extend the existing bay window on the front 
elevation. The total height would be approx 3.0 metres by approx 3.0 metres in 
width and approx 1.9 metres in depth. The dwelling is similar in design to others in 
the surrounding residential area with the principal entrance on the south side 
elevation and ornamental stone frontage with matching fenestration. 
 
1.2 There is no property history documented. 
 
OTHER INFORMATION: 
 
1.3 The application is to be considered at the East Area Planning Sub - Committee 
because the applicant has been a former employee of the Council within the last 
four years. 
 
2.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1 Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary GMS Constraints: York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams GMS Constraints: East Area (2) 0005 
 
2.2 Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  

Agenda Item 4b Page 32



 

Application Reference Number: 12/00804/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 2 of 4 

CYH7 
Residential extensions 
 
3.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1 INTERNAL: 
 
None 
 
3.2 EXTERNAL: 
 
Haxby Town Council - No objections. 
 
Neighbours - no replies received.  
 
4.0 APPRAISAL 
 
4.1 Key Issue(s):  
 
Effect upon neighbours  
Effect upon surrounding area. 
 
4.2 The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government's overarching 
planning policies.  It states that national Government attaches great importance to 
the design of the built environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute positively to 
making places better for people. 
 
 4.3 Draft Local Plan Policy CYGP1 states that development proposals will be 
expected, amongst other things, to respect or enhance the local environment, be of 
a density, layout, scale, mass and design that is compatible with neighbouring 
buildings, and ensure that residents living nearby are not unduly affected by noise, 
disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or dominated by overbearing structures.  
 
4.4 Draft Local Plan Policy CYH7 states that planning permission will be granted for 
residential extensions where: (a) the design and materials are sympathetic to the 
main dwelling and the locality of the development; and (b) the design and scale are 
appropriate in relation to the main building; (d) there is no adverse effect on the 
amenity which neighbouring residents could reasonably expect to enjoy. 
 
4.5 Supplementary Planning Guidance 'A Guide to Extensions and Alterations to 
Private Dwelling Houses' March 2001 states that (1.12) states that the basic shape 
and size of the extension should be sympathetic to the design of the original 
dwelling.  The scale of the new extension should not dominate the original building.  

Page 33



 

Application Reference Number: 12/00804/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 3 of 4 

Proposed extensions should have pitched roofs and the materials should match 
those of the main property.   
 
VISUAL AMENITY: 
 
4.6 The proposal would extend the existing bow window by constructing a lead 
canopy roof and brick infill to the area beneath the existing window to provide 
additional space within the front room as well as creating a more solid feature to the 
front elevation. The window opening itself will not alter in size. In terms of visual 
appearance the proposal would use materials that are in keeping with the existing 
dwelling, and would be of a size and scale size which respects the character and 
appearance of the host property. Therefore the proposal is unlikely to detract from 
the character and appearance of the residential area.  
 
RESIDENTIAL AMENITY: 
 
4.7 The surrounding neighbourhood is designed with adequate spaces around the 
dwellings, and there are no principal windows within close proximity of the proposal. 
Furthermore, it would be generally screened by the existing boundary treatment. As 
such it is not considered that the proposed development would have an unduly 
detrimental impact on the amenity of the surrounding neighbours.  
 
5.0 CONCLUSION 
 
 5.1 The proposal is considered to be acceptable on the front elevation and will not 
harm residential amenity.  As such the proposal complies with Policies H7 and GP1 
of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft and Supplementary Planning Guidance 
'A Guide to Extensions and Alterations to Private Dwelling Houses' March 2001. 
 
 
6.0 RECOMMENDATION:   Householder Approval 
 
 
1  TIME2  Development start within three years -   
 
2  PLANS1  Approved plans - Drawings received on 04.02.2012  
 
3  VISQ1  Matching materials -   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

Application Reference Number: 12/00804/FUL  Item No: 4b 
Page 4 of 4 

7.0 INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1.  REASON FOR APPROVAL 
 
In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the conditions 
listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged importance, 
with particular reference to the impact on the residential amenity of neighbours and 
the effect on the character and appearance of the area.  As such the proposal 
complies with Policies H7 and GP1 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Sharon Jackson Development Management Assistant 
Tel No: 01904 551359 
 

Page 35



Produced using ESRI (UK)'s  MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :

Not Set

12/00804/FUL
98 Eastfield Avenue, Haxby

City of York Council

Planning and Sustainable Development

23 April 2012

1:1250

Page 36


	Agenda
	
	4a Yearsley Bridge Adult Training Centre Huntington Road York YO31 9BN (11/03269/FULM)
	Yearsley Bridge Report April-Annex A
	Yearsley Bridge Adult Training Centre.pdf

	4b 98 Eastfield Avenue Haxby York YO32 3EZ (12/00804/FUL)
	98 Eastfield Avenue.pdf


